

### **D7.2. Sectors with highest CRM demand growth potential: a review of future critical raw material demand in 11 key technologies for transport, energy, electronics and telecommunication sectors** Aguilar Hernandez, G.A.; Kleijn, E.G.M.; Mancheri, N.; Loibl, A.; Tercero, L.

Citation

Aguilar Hernandez, G. A., Kleijn, E. G. M., Mancheri, N., Loibl, A., & Tercero, L. (2022). D7.2. Sectors with highest CRM demand growth potential: a review of future critical raw material demand in 11 key technologies for transport, energy, electronics and telecommunication sectors. Leiden: Leiden University. Retrieved from https://hdl.handle.net/1887/3590033

Version:Publisher's VersionLicense:Leiden University Non-exclusive licenseDownloaded from:https://hdl.handle.net/1887/3590033

**Note:** To cite this publication please use the final published version (if applicable).



### SCRREEN2

Coordination and Support Action (CSA)

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 958211.

Start date : 2020-11-01 Duration : 36 Months



### Sectors with highest CRM demand growth potential

Authors : Dr. Rene KLEIJN (Leiden University), Glenn A. AGUILAR-HERNANDEZ (UL-CML), Rene KLEIJN (UL-CML), Nabeel MANCHERI (REIA), Antonia LOIBL(FhG), Luis TERCERO (FhG)

#### SCRREEN2 - Contract Number: 958211

#### Project officer: Ugo Miretti

Document title	Sectors with highest CRM demand growth potential				
Author(s)	Dr. Rene KLEIJN, Glenn A. AGUILAR-HERNANDEZ (UL-CML), Rene KLEIJN (UL-CML), Nabeel MANCHERI (REIA), Antonia LOIBL(FhG), Luis TERCERO (FhG)				
Number of pages	25				
Document type	Deliverable				
Work Package	WP7				
Document number	D7.2				
Issued by	Leiden University				
Date of completion	2022-09-02 14:16:19				
Dissemination level	Public				

#### Summary

An array of technologies is expected to contribute to the energy and circular transitions in multiple sectors, such as transport, energy, and electronics and telecommunications. These sectors are considered key sectors for achieving climate targets due to their role on reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The widespread use of technologies will require increased amounts raw materials and may strain the established supply chains for some of these. There is interest in critical raw materials (CRMs) that have major economic relevance and face comparatively high supply risks in specific economies. Identifying the future CRM demand in the key sectors is essential to implement strategies that can mitigate potential disruptions and helps to improve resilience in the relevant supply chains. This working paper provides an overview of the CRM demand of 11 key technologies that are expected to contribute to the development of transport, energy, electronics, and telecommunication sectors. Moreover, the working paper discusses the links between the selected sectors, and identifies further implications for the future CRM demand, such as overall CRM demand from other economic sectors and technologies, circularity potential, CRM demand from production and building infrastructure, future innovations, and supply/demand interactions.

Approval					
Date	Ву				
2022-09-12 10:39:40	Dr. Luis TERCERO (Fraunhofer)				
2022-10-27 12:03:43	Mr. Stéphane BOURG (CEA)				

### A REVIEW OF FUTURE CRITICAL RAW MATERIAL DEMAND IN 11 KEY TECHNOLOGIES FOR TRANSPORT, ENERGY, ELECTRONICS AND TELECOMMUNICATION SECTORS

#### Authors: Glenn A. AGUILAR-HERNANDEZ (UL-CML), Rene KLEIJN (UL-CML), Nabeel MANCHERI (REIA), Antonia LOIBL(FhG), Luis TERCERO (FhG)

February, 2022

#### Abstract

An array of technologies is expected to contribute to the energy and circular transitions in multiple sectors, such as transport, energy, and electronics and telecommunications. These sectors are considered key sectors for achieving climate targets due to their role on reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The widespread use of technologies will require increased amounts raw materials and may strain the established supply chains for some of these. There is interest in critical raw materials (CRMs) that have major economic relevance and face comparatively high supply risks in specific economies. Identifying the future CRM demand in the key sectors is essential to implement strategies that can mitigate potential disruptions and helps to improve resilience in the relevant supply chains.

This working paper provides an overview of the CRM demand of 11 key technologies that are expected to contribute to the development of transport, energy, electronics, and telecommunication sectors. Moreover, the working paper discusses the links between the selected sectors, and identifies further implications for the future CRM demand, such as overall CRM demand from other economic sectors and technologies, circularity potential, CRM demand from production and building infrastructure, future innovations, and supply/demand interactions.

### **Table of Contents**

1.	Introduction						
2.	CRM demand for the transportation sector						
	2.1.	Key technologies and CRM requirements	4				
	2.1.1.	Traction motors	4				
	2.1.2.	Li-ion batteries	4				
	2.2.	Future CRM demand for the transportation sector	5				
3.	CRM demand for the energy sector 3.1. Key technologies and CRM requirements						
	3.1.1. Solar photovoltaics						
	3.1.2.	Wind power	6				
	3.1.3.	Energy storage technologies	7				
	3.1.4.	Fuel cells	7				
	3.1.5. Hydrogen production technologies						
	3.2. Future CRM demand for energy sector						
4.	CRM dei 4.1.	nand for the electronics and telecommunication sector Key technologies and CRM requirements	10				
	4.1.1. Digital technologies						
	4.1.2.	Photonics	11				
	4.1.3.	5G/6G	11				





	4.1.4	4. Quantum computing	12			
	4.2.	Future CRM demand for electronics and telecommunication	13			
5.	Implica 5.1. Lin	ations for future CRM demand Iks between key sectors	14 14			
	5.2. Fu	rther considerations for future CRM demand	16			
	5.2.1	1. Current CRM demand and scale from other sectors				
	5.2.2	2. CRM demand from applications connected to the selected sectors				
	5.2.3	3. CRM demand from CRM production and infrastructure				
	5.2.4	4. Circularity potential				
	5.2.5	5. Future innovations and emerging CRMs	17			
	5.2.6	6. Supply and demand interactions	17			
	5.3. Conclusions					
	Acknowledgements					
	Footno	otes				
6.	Annex.		19			
7.	Refere	nces				

### 1. Introduction

Energy and circular transitions are crucial to achieving sustainability goals and climate change targets in the upcoming decades (IEA, 2021a; IRP, 2020). To enable such transitions towards sustainability, the development of technologies has a major role on contributing to mitigate greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. For example, the EU has proposed to increase the share of renewable sources for electricity production to 80% in 2050 (Bobba et al., 2020). This has been reinforced through recovery strategies for the economic crisis during the COVID-19 outbreak (European Commission, 2021a; Zanoletti et al., 2021).

The transitions toward a sustainable future require an increasing volume of raw materials to build the infrastructure needed to develop renewable energies and circular strategies (IRP, 2020). Governments and practitioners have put important attention to the impacts



### Figure 1: Critical raw materials for the EU (European Commission, 2020b)

of future technologies, and material criticality for those technologies that support a sustainable future (European Commission, 2014; Grilli et al., 2017). Security of supply for raw materials important to the energy transition have been discussed for the last decade (DOE, 2011; Moss et al., 2013). These focused reports complement the broader discussion around critical raw materials (European Commission, 2021b; NRC, 2008).

CRMs are economically and strategically relevant for an economy and face comparatively high supply risks (European Commission, 2020b). In 2020, the EU reviewed its list of Critical Raw Materials, arriving at a selection of 30 raw materials and groups of raw materials, including 42 elements, and 5 industrial minerals and biotic materials (see figure 1).

The demand for CRMs depends on multiple factors, such as population growth, and technological development (Tercero Espinoza, 2012; Tercero Espinoza & Wittmer, 2015). Considering the energy and circular transitions, emerging technologies bring an extra pressure on CRMs demand, which varies depending on technology applications (Blanco et al., 2020; de Oliveira et al., 2021). Thus, it is important to identify the future demand of CRMs considering the technological shift or improvements in specific sectors.

CRM demand is driven by the material use in multiple sectors. However, transport, energy and electronics have been highlighted as key sectors necessary to achieving GHG mitigation targets by 2040 but generating significant new demand for CRM (EMF, 2017; IEA, 2021b; Monnet & Ait Abderrahim, 2018). The transport sector accounts for almost a quarter of the greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions



worldwide (IEA, 2020b) and is being revolutionized by the broad introduction of electric vehicles. The development of renewable energy technologies plays is central to the energy transition (IRENA, 2019a) and implies a significant increase in critical raw material use for the energy sector. The electronics and telecommunications sector can facilitate the energy and circular transitions, but will itself require critical raw materials (Bobba et al., 2020; Eynard et al., 2020). Strongly increasing demand in even a single application can significantly impact the overall demand for raw materials (cf. Langkau & Tercero Espinoza, 2018 for some historical examples).

The CRM demand also depends on the links between these sectors, which can significantly increase the CRM requirements in the future. For example, the transport sector requires inputs from the energy sector, which implies that changes in the transport system would influence the energy sector and its future CRM demand. Thus, understanding the relation between the key sectors is crucial to identify the potential changes in CRM requirements.

This working paper aims to provide an overview of the most recent information on the CRM demand for technologies that are expected to have a major contribution to these key sectors (i.e., transport, energy, and electronics and telecommunication) by 2040. There are a number of studies that assess the CRM requirements and future demand of specific sectors and technologies (see, for example, Deetman et al., 2016; IEA, 2020a; Xu et al., 2020). Among the CRM literature, there are only a few studies that address the future CRM demand of technologies related to the selected sectors. For example, Bobba et al. (2020) provides CRM demand scenarios of foresight technologies in strategic sectors for the EU up to 2050. Likewise, Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021) brings global scenarios of technological development up to 2040, where scenarios for CRM demand are expressed per technology and relevant sectors. To the best of our knowledge, these two studies comprise the most recent scenario analysis of CRM demand for technologies linked to the selected sectors.

There are 11 technologies reviewed in this working paper, namely, traction motors, Li-ion batteries, solar photovoltaics, wind power, energy storage technologies, fuel cells, hydrogen production, digital technologies, photonics, 5G/6G, and quantum computing. These technologies are selected as some the most relevant technologies for future CRM demand based on their



recurrence in the literature search. Figure 2 shows the structure of the document.

Other relevant technologies and sectors (e.g., food systems) were not considered in this working paper. The scope was narrowed down to the selected technologies and sectors in order to provide sensible links between the sectors. However, it is important to consider that there might be further implications for future CRM demand from other economic sectors and technologies (see section 5.2).



Figure 2: Outline of Working Paper D7.2. E&T = Electronics and telecommunication sector





# 2. CRM demand for the transportation sector

#### 2.1. Key technologies and CRM requirements

The development of sustainable transport technologies is a key aspect to achieve climate policy targets. The transport sector is one of the major contributors to GHG emissions (IEA, 2020b). In the EU, for example, the transport sector represents around 25% of total GHG emissions, where road transport contributes almost threequarters of GHG emissions (European Commission, 2021c). Within this context, novel technologies offer opportunities to reduce impacts of the transport sector. The following sub-sections explore 2 key technologies for the transport sector and their CRM demand by 2040.

#### 2.1.1. Electric traction motors

E-mobility is considered a key technology for a sustainable transport system in the future. Several governments (such as China, US, and the EU) have proposed targets to extent the fleet of electric vehicles (EVs) and other electric transport equipment in the upcoming decades (Jones et al., 2020). Depending on the country, EV market share is expected to increase between 21-57% by 2030 (IEA, 2019).

The development of EVs has led to continuous improvements of electric traction motor technologies, which are an essential component to transform electric power from batteries into motion (Jones et al., 2020). The application of traction motors can be found in multiple transport equipment, for example e-bikes, electric passenger cars and heavy transport (Bobba et al., 2020).

Many compact and efficient electric motor designs use NdFeB permanent magnets that are well-known for driving the demand of rare earth elements, REEs (Pavel et al., 2017). (Elshkaki, 2020). Other REEs are used in the production of traction motors as well (Pavel et al., 2017). Dysprosium and terbium are used in NdFeB magnets to make them more stable towards temperature. For other CRMs in traction motors, boron is a component of NdFeB magnets, and silicon metal is used as an alloying material for the motor's structure (Bobba et al., 2020).

It is important to notice that there is an ongoing development of alternative motor designs aiming to reduce and/or replace the amount of REEs required for traction motor technologies. For example, induction machines, wound and reluctance motors are considered

as alternate technologies and expected to contribute to the development of EVs (Widmer et al., 2015). However, the EV market is expected to be dominated by traction motor technologies with REE-containing permanent magnets in the next two decades (Mordor Intelligence, 2021).



Figure 3: CRM requirements for traction motor technologies. B = Boron (borates), Dy = Dysprosium, Nd = Neodymium, Pr = Praseodymium, and Si = Silicon (metal).

#### 2.1.2. Li-ion batteries

Li-ion battery technologies are key to the development of EVs and will continue to be an important technology in the upcoming decades. (Miao et al., 2019; Tsiropoulos et al., 2018). The application of Li-ion is not limited to transport systems but is also used in energy storage and electronics sectors (see section 3 and 4).

The production of Li-ion batteries requires multiple CRM materials (see figure 4). Natural graphite, silicon metal, and titanium (in future applications) are used in anodes in Li-ion batteries (Valero et al., 2018). Lithium and cobalt are applied to Li-ion cathodes, and niobium is expected to be used in future cathode development (Bobba et al., 2020). Phosphorous<sup>1</sup> and fluorspar components are also CRM materials that are used in the development of Li-ion batteries technologies (Valero et al., 2018).

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 730227







Figure 4: CRM requirements for Li-ion battery technologies. C = Carbon (natural graphite), CaF<sub>2</sub> = Calcium fluoride (fluorspar components), Co = Cobalt, Li = Lithium, P= Phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, Nb = Niobium, Si = Silicon (metal), and Ti = Titanium.

Figure 5 brings an overview of the 12 CRMs requirement for transport technologies. The demand of silicon metal is

shared by traction motors and Li-ion battery technologies, which might imply potential pressure on the future silicon metal demand.

## 2.2. Future CRM demand for the transportation sector

For traction motor technologies, the global CRM demand by 2040 will rise mostly for the REEs. Regarding light rare earth elements (LREEs), neodymium demand is forecast to increase 24 times compared to the demand in 2018<sup>2</sup> (for values in tonnes, see table 1, Annex). The demand for heavy rare earth elements (HREEs), such as dysprosium, is expected to increase by the same factor. Both LREEs and HREEs demands are related to the production of permanent magnets. In comparison with REE supply in 2018, the future REE demand for traction motors would require 5 times the global production in 2018 (see table 1, Annex).



#### Figure 5: CRM demand for the transport technologies





Global lithium demand is expected to rise more than 50 times by 2040 compared to demand in 2018<sup>2</sup> to satisfy the demand for Li-ion batteries from the transport sector. Compared to the global lithium supply in 2018, the future demand for Li-ion batteries would require 4 times the global lithium production in 2018 (see table 1, Annex). Cobalt demand is expected to increase 24 times compared to 2018 requirements<sup>2</sup>. The future demand of cobalt for Li-ion batteries would require 2 times the global cobalt supply in 2018. Natural graphite will also have the major increases, with an additional amount of 47 times compared to the CRM demand in 2018<sup>2</sup>. The future natural graphite for Li-ion batteries represents around 64% of the global natural graphite production in 2018.

In contrast, there are scenarios that suggest a significant higher future CRM requirement for transport sector. For example, lithium, cobalt, and graphite increasing 818, 620, and over 2000 times, respectively, in 2050 compared to the 2018 demand<sup>3</sup>. In this case, the large differences between multiple scenarios come from the assumptions made to determine the future energy requirements for transport sector (for more details, see Michaux, 2021).

## 3. CRM demand for the energy sector

Renewable energy technologies have been developed rapidly in the last decades because of their importance to achieve climate change targets. Several technologies are expected to support the energy transition (Moss et al., 2013; Ubaldi et al., 2019). The following sub-sections review 5 key technologies in the energy sector and their CRM requirements by 2040.

#### 3.1. Key technologies and CRM requirements

#### 3.1.1. Solar photovoltaics

Solar photovoltaics (PV) is one of the key technologies for the energy transition. With the decrease of production cost and rapid technological development, solar PV is expected to grow in the coming decades (IRENA, 2019a). Current commercial application comprises crystalline silicon and thin-film technologies. The latter is considered the most important for the future demand of solar PV by 2030. Thin-film will have the largest market share by this period as thin-film has been economically feasible and represents already the large share of solar PV market (IRENA, 2019a). Thin-film includes amorphous silicon, copper-indium-gallium-(di)selenide (CIGS), and cadmiumtelluride (CdTe).

Solar PV comprises a variety of materials depending on the technology type (see figure 6). For instance, silicon metal is a crucial material for solar PV, in particular, in recent times where there has been a major disruption of semiconductor supply chain due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on global supply chains (Garrington, 2020). Likewise, the production of CIGS and CdTe involve the use of CRM, such as indium (Valero et al., 2018). Moreover, demand for gallium arsenide (GaAs) adds pressure to the future demand of gallium by 2040 (IEA, 2021a; Monnet & Ait Abderrahim, 2018). Other CRMs are used in siliconbased wafers (e.g., boron) and as semiconductor materials (e.g., germanium). It is important to notice that cadmium and tellurium are considered as non-critical in 2020 EU criticality list, thus, these elements excluded from this report.



Figure 6: CRM requirements for solar PV technologies. B = Boron (borates), Ga = Gallium, Ge = Germanium, In = Indium, and Si = Silicon (metal).

#### 3.1.2. Wind power

Another well-known technology that contributes to the energy transition is wind power. The investment on wind farms is expected to increase in the coming decades, with a higher development of offshore (i.e., at sea) wind than onshore (i.e., in land) technologies. By 2030, the EU offshore wind power is expected to contribute to 30-40% share of all wind power production (Rabe et al., 2017).



Wind power requires REEs, such as neodymium, dysprosium, praseodymium, and terbium, to build the permanent magnets used in wind turbines (Valero et al., 2018). Furthermore, boron is used in these neodymium–iron–boron magnets (Bobba et al., 2020), and niobium is used as a microalloying element in high strength structural steel for wind towers (cf. Figure 7).



Figure 7: CRM requirements for wind power technologies. B = Boron (borates), Dy = Dysprosium, Nb = Niobium, Nd = Neodymium, and Pr = Praseodymium, and Tb Terbium.

Neodymium and dysprosium are considered more relevant for the development of wind power, as these elements are required intensively in wind turbines (12 - 180 t/GW for neodymium and 2 - 17 t/GW for dysprosium), and present high supply risk (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021).

#### 3.1.3. Energy storage technologies

It is well-known that solar PV and wind power are not constant renewable sources as these energy technologies fluctuate along with daytime and weather conditions. This means that the application of technologies to store the energy captured by the intermittent energy sources is crucial.

The development of energy storage application has led to improved battery technologies that can support renewable energy systems (Hache et al., 2019). Depending on the storage application, several types of battery technologies are on development, such as Li-ion batteries and redox flow batteries (Ait Abderrahim, A. Monnet, 2018; Tsiropoulos et al., 2018).

As mentioned in Section 2, Li-ion batteries are expected to contribute significantly to a sustainable energy transition.



The application of Li-ion is not limited to transport systems, but also used in energy storage and electronics. Recapping from Section 2, the production of Li-ion batteries requires multiple CRM materials: cobalt, lithium, natural graphite, niobium, titanium, phosphorous, and fluorspar components (see figure 8).

Redox flow batteries are also a mature technology that can be applied to large-scale energy storage. Currently, the market of redox flow batteries consists of vanadium redox flow batteries, which implies a significant use of vanadium as CRM (Ait Abderrahim, A. Monnet, 2018). Furthermore, it is expected that all-iron redox flow batteries will contribute to the application of redox flow technologies in the upcoming decades. However, this technology is still not commercially available (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021).



Figure 8: CRM requirements for battery technologies. C = Carbon (natural graphite), CaF2 = Calcium fluoride (fluorspar components), Co = Cobalt, Li = Lithium, P = Phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, Nb= Niobium, Si= Silicon (metal), Ti = Titanium, and V = Vanadium (for Redox flow batteries).

#### 3.1.4. Fuel cells

Fuel cells are a clean energy alternative for the energy transition. Fuel cell technologies use a fuel (such as hydrogen) to convert chemical energy into electricity without combustion through an electrochemical cell (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021; Moss et al., 2013).

There are multiple types of fuel cells that vary depending on the type of fuel, operational system, and application. The technology is expected to have an important contribution to mobility applications (Hache et al., 2019). However, fuel cells are currently more used for stationary





power generation, which covers more than 65% of the market (Bobba et al., 2020).

Considering stationary fuel cells, CRM requirements vary depending on the type of technology. Most common electrolyte materials for fuel cells are yttria-stabilized zirconia, scandium-stabilized zirconia, and gadoliniumdoped cerium (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). From the CRM perspective, the development of fuel technologies relies on the use of lanthanum, yttrium, cobalt, and scandium (see figure 9). Furthermore, natural graphite is used for the construction of bipolar plates, platinum and palladium as electrocatalytic components, as well as titanium and strontium as components for the fuel cell anodes (Bobba et al., 2020).



Figure 9: CRM requirements for fuel cell technologies. C = Carbon (natural graphite), Ce = Cerium, Co = Cobalt, Gd = Gadolinium, La = Lanthanum, Pd = Palladium, Pt = Platinum, Sc = Scandium, Sr = Strontium, Ti = Titanium, and Y = Yttrium.

#### 3.1.5. Hydrogen production technologies

There are several technologies for hydrogen production. However, the production of green hydrogen (i.e., production based on renewable energies) is considered the most sustainable option that can contribute to future energy systems (IRENA, 2020).

By 2040, it is expected that the use of water electrolysis powered by renewable energies will be the largest technology for hydrogen production (IRENA, 2020). This is because water electrolysis technologies are reaching a point of development where their large-scale application will be feasible technically and economically. There are several CRM requirements for water electrolysis that depend on the technology type (see Figure 10). For example, proton exchange membrane electrolysers (which have become commercially available in recent years) require platinum, iridium, ruthenium as well as titanium (Kiemel et al., 2021; Shiva Kumar & Himabindu, 2019). Other novel water electrolysis is high temperature electrolysis (also known as solid oxide electrolysis), which requires strontium and REEs, such as yttrium and lanthanum (Kiemel et al., 2021). Other CRMs used in water electrolysis technologies are scandium, and cobalt (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). Furthermore, the use of cerium contributes to improve electrocatalytic activity and to reduce the amount of iridium and ruthenium (Shiva Kumar & Himabindu, 2019).



Figure 10: CRM requirements for water electrolysis technologies used in hydrogen production. Co = Cobalt, Ir = Iridium (as part of platinum metal group), La = Lanthanum, Pt = Platinum Sc = Scandium, Sr= Strontium, Ti = Titanium, and Y = Yttrium.

Figure 11 shows an overview of the 28 CRMs required for energy technologies. Platinum, titanium, scandium, strontium, lanthanum, cerium, and yttrium demand are shared by fuel cells and hydrogen production technologies. Furthermore, cobalt demand will be driven by fuel cells, hydrogen, and battery technologies. Boron demand is shared by solar PV and wind power, while silicon metal demand is shared by solar PV and battery technologies. The demand for natural graphite is allocated to fuel cells and battery technologies. Moreover, niobium demand is shared by wind power and battery technologies.







Figure 11: CRM demand for the selected energy technologies. Niobium is shared by wind power and battery technologies<sup>5</sup>

#### 3.2. Future CRM demand for energy sector

By 2040, the global demand of REEs in wind power plants will exceed more than 6 times the requirements in 2018<sup>2</sup> (for values in tonnes, see table 1, Annex). This includes Light Rare Earth Elements (such as neodymium and praseodymium) as well as Heavy Rare Earth Elements (as dysprosium and terbium). In comparison with the global supply in 2018, the future demand of REEs for wind power represents around 9% of the global REEs production in 2018 (see table 1, Annex).

For solar PV, the global demand of gallium and indium is expected to increase between 5 to 10 times compared to 2018 requirements<sup>2,4</sup>. The future demand of gallium for solar PV represents 0.01% of the global gallium supply in 2018, while the future indium demand represents around 13% of the global production of indium in 2018.

Fuel cells will present the highest changes in CRM demand by 2040. This additional amount of CRM for fuel cells are caused by a large-scale production of fuel cells in the 1.5°C scenario. Cobalt will present the highest increases of CRM demand in energy technologies, which will increase consumption 63 times<sup>2</sup> due to the increasing demand of fuel cells. Nevertheless, the future cobalt demand for fuel cells represents 0.04% of the global cobalt supply in 2018 (see table 1, Annex).

Regarding energy storage technologies, Li-ion batteries demand will change the CRM demand by the same proportion as in battery technologies for the transport sector, where CRM demand increase more than 50 times by 2040 compared to 2018 (see section 2.2.). It is important to notice that the values of Li-ion batteries for energy and transport sectors are equivalent in relative



terms. However, the absolute values are different as it is expected that the share of Li-ion batteries for energy storage will represent around 20% of total energy and transport market for 2070, having 80% of share for transport applications<sup>6</sup> (IEA, 2020a).

Hydrogen production through water electrolysis technology presents the highest changes in CRM demand by 2040. The demand of REEs (such as lanthanum and yttrium) will be over 3000 times more than the demand in 2018<sup>2</sup>. Similarly, demands for titanium, scandium, platinum metal group (including platinum and iridium), and cobalt are expected to increase 3800, 2400, 4000, and 4000 times<sup>2</sup>, respectively. Although these factors can be seen extremely large, it is important to notice that there was no large-scale application yet in such scenarios, as the electrolysis technology was not commercially available in 2018. Moreover, the future demand of REEs, titanium, and platinum for hydrogen represent less than 2% of the global production of these elements in 2018 (see table 1, Annex). Therefore, growth rates are very large while total amounts are not as significant. Furthermore, the large factors do not mean a significant amount in absolute terms as the CRMs might be required in small amounts (for absolute values in tonnes, see table 1, Annex).

Hydrogen and fuel cell technologies are expected to contribute significantly to the transport sector, which means that the CRM demand scenarios for these technologies will also depend on future demand from transport systems. For example, hydrogen is a clean fuel alternative for transport sector applications, which can be used directly through the integration of fuel cells in EVs or indirectly through stationary fuel cells and battery-based EVs (IEA, 2019).

As hydrogen production technologies contribute simultaneously to the energy and transport sectors (IEA, 2019; IRENA, 2019b), hydrogen production is classified in this working paper as key technology for energy sector, but keeping in mind that it is key for the transport sector as well.



### 4. CRM demand for the electronics and telecommunication sector

The electronics and telecommunication sector covers a broad range of goods and services that use electrical components. This sector includes the manufacture of durable products, such as laptops, smartphones, home appliances, displays, optical fibres and so on. Their applications have been speeded up in the past decades, where electrical devices can be found in multiple sectors (Ait Abderrahim, A. Monnet, 2018). The following subsections explore 4 key technologies for the electronics and telecommunication sector and their CRM demand by 2040.

#### 4.1. Key technologies and CRM requirements

#### 4.1.1. Digital technologies

Digital technologies can be seen as auxiliary technologies to enable a cost-effective energy and circular transition. These technologies comprise several digitalization and automatization areas, such as information and communication technology (ICT) devices, and advanced electronics.



Figure 12: CRM requirements digital technologies. B = Boron, C = Carbon (natural graphite), Co = Cobalt, Ga = Gallium, Ge = Germanium, In = Indium, Nd = Neodymium, Pr = Praseodymium, Pt = Platinum, and Si = Silicon (metal).

Digitalization and automatization are already having a significant contribution to energy systems. For instance, there are applications of robotic automatization in solar PV and wind turbines production, in which automatization



allows the development of complex structural components (European Commission, 2017; Ubaldi et al., 2019). Furthermore, 3D printing and additive manufacturing are expected to be applied in the development of renewable energy infrastructure (e.g., in components used by offshore wind turbines), which will facilitate the production of certain renewable energies (Bobba et al., 2020).

Regarding CRM, digital technologies require a variety of materials, which are mostly used to produce advanced electronic devices. For example, 3D printing requires cobalt and natural graphite (Bobba et al., 2020). Furthermore, platinum, neodymium, praseodymium, and boron are required in the production of hard disk drive. Gallium and silicon metal are required for semiconductors (IEEE, 2021). Germanium is also required for semiconductors, as well as to produce fiber-optic cables. Indium is used as indium oxide for the development of screens (European Commission, 2020a).

#### 4.1.2. Photonics

Photonics technologies provide a suitable way to transmit information through light signals. These technologies use photonic devices to produce, detect, and interact with light, which can be found in multiple high-tech applications (Flik, 2021). For example, photonic devices are key components of data transmission in telecommunication systems, which use optical fibers and optoelectronic devices to transfer information efficiently (Amiri et al., 2018).

Regarding CRM requirements, photonics devices have a different CRM demand depending on the type of application. Considering telecommunication applications, photonics technologies are constituted by three main components: transmitter, sender and receiver (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). These components use multiple devices, such as lenses, photonic integrated circuits, and optical fibers. Thus, photonics technologies requires a significant amount of CRMs (Flik, 2021). For telecommunication applications, there are key CRMs that are expected to be crucial in future demand (see figure 13). The use of beryllium, gallium, and indium are required for electro-optical systems (Bobba et al., Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2020: 2021). Furthermore, germanium is used in the manufacturing of optical fibers (Ait Abderrahim, A. Monnet, 2018).





Figure 13: Key CRM requirements for photonics technologies in telecommunication application. Be = Beryllium, Ga = Gallium, Ge = Germanium, and In = Indium.

#### 4.1.3. 5G/6G

5G refers to the 5<sup>th</sup> generation for broadband cellular network, which provides high speed connectivity and data transmission (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). 5G is expected to contribute to enhance resource and energy efficiency (Juneja et al., 2021). For example, 5G is required for the development of the Internet of Things (IoT) where multiples devices are interconnected and interact in realtime, which is key for applications such as smart energy systems (HUAWEI, 2021; Marchese et al., 2019).

5G is expected to have a major coverage in sustainable technologies between 2025 and 2030 (UN, 2021). However, it is also expected to be replaced quickly by 6G applications, which will provide even faster connectivity for network systems.

The CRM demand of 5G/6G comes from the equipment types on these network applications, which include antennas, base stations, and remote radio units (Flik, 2021). Gallium is used in based amplifiers for base stations, and mobile devices. Lithium niobate, and lithium tantalate are required for their transmission properties (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). Indium phosphide is also required in optical transceivers in base stations (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). Moreover, erbium and scandium (for RF filters) are also CRM required for the development of 5G/6G technologies (Ecclestone, 2019; Song et al., 2021; Yan & VanHeerden, 2021).

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 730227







Figure 14: CRM requirements for 5G/6G applications. Er = Erbium Ga = Gallium, In = Indium, Li = Lithium, Nb = Niobium, P = Phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, Sc= Scandium, and Ta = Tantalum.

#### 4.1.4. Quantum computing

Quantum computing is considered a key technology for the development of communication services. The computational power generated by quantum systems bring unprecedented possibilities for digital technologies compared to a traditional computing systems (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021).

Quantum computing provides significant improvements in security and data processing, which are expected to have positive impacts on digital technologies (Appas et al., 2021; Giustino et al., 2020). For example, quantum networks are expected to enhance the security network for operators and users in telecommunication systems (Flik, 2021).

With the current development of quantum computing, there are some CRM requirements that can be already identified. This technology includes three main devices: quantum router, quantum sender, and quantum receiver (Flik, 2021). The CRM requirements for quantum devices present 70% of the elements in the EU's CRM list, such as REEs, gallium, germanium, niobium (Flik, 2021). Figure 15 shows 13 CRMs used in quantum computing devices considering the current technological development.

It is important to notice that the field of quantum materials with quantum computing applications is changing constantly (Giustino et al., 2020). Thus, the CRM demand for quantum computing might be different with novel quantum materials and their potential commercial applications.



Figure 15: CRM requirements for quantum computing. Be = Beryllium, C = Carbon (natural graphite), Ga = Gallium, Ge = Germanium, In = Indium, Li = Lithium, Nb = Niobium, P = Phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, REEs = Rare Earth Elements including light REEs (as praseodymium) and heavy REEs (as dysprosium, holmium, erbium, and gadolinium) Si = Silicon (metal), Ti = Titanium, and W = Tungsten.

Figure 16 provides an overview of the 19 CRM demand for electronics and telecommunication technologies. Gallium and indium demands are shared by all four selected technologies. Lithium, phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, and niobium demand will be driven by 5G/6G and quantum computing. Natural graphite and silicon metal are shared by quantum computing and digital technologies. The demand of germanium is shared by digital technologies, quantum computing as well as photonics. Furthermore, beryllium demand is allocated to photonics and quantum computing.







Figure 16: CRM demand for the selected electronic and telecommunication technologies. Niobium, phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, and lithium are shared by 5G/6G and quantum computing technologies<sup>5</sup>

## 4.2. Future CRM demand for electronics and telecommunication

As in section 2.2. and 3.2, CRM demand for electronics and telecommunication technologies has been modelled based on multiple scenarios by 2040 (see, for example, IEA, 2020a, 2021b; IRENA, 2019a; Monnet & Ait Abderrahim, 2018; Tsiropoulos et al., 2018; Xu et al., 2020).

By 2040, the global CRM requirement for photonics technologies will double the CRM demand compared to 2018<sup>2</sup> (for values in tonnes, see table 1, Annex). It is expected that demand for gallium for photonics in 2040 will be 2 times larger than the corresponding requirements 2018<sup>2</sup>. However, in comparison with the global gallium supply, the demand of gallium for photonics represents less than 0.001% of the global production in 2018 (see

table 1, Annex). Likewise, the demand for indium is expected to increase 3 times in 2040 compared to 2018<sup>2</sup>. The future indium demand for photonics represents 2% of the global production of indium in 2018.

For 5G/6G applications, the global demand of CRM will also double by 2040 compared to the use in these applications in 2018<sup>2</sup>. Gallium, lithium, and tantalum are expected to rise to 2 times the demand in 2040 compared to the 2018 requirements<sup>2</sup>. Meanwhile, indium is expected to have a slightly higher increase, in which the indium demand for 5G/6G application is expected to be 3 times higher than the indium requirement in 2018<sup>2</sup>. In comparison with the global supply in 2018, the future demand of gallium, lithium, and indium for 5G/6G represent less than 2% of the global production of these elements in 2018, while the future demand of tantalum represents around 20% of the global tantalum production in 2018 (see table 1, Annex).





The previous sections brought together an overview of the CRM requirements and future demand for the selected technologies in the transport, energy, and electronics and telecommunication sectors. There are several CRMs used in multiple technologies, as well as a nexus between key sectors. The following sub-sections explore the links between the 3 key sectors, and further implications for future CRM demand.

#### 5.1. Links between key sectors

There are several CRMs that are required in different applications. Figure 17 (a) shows the relation between the CRM requirements in transport, energy, and electronics and telecommunication sectors based on the 11 reviewed technologies.

The total CRM requirements in the selected technologies correspond to 33 materials, of which 11 out of 33 CRMs are required simultaneously by the three selected sectors. Among others, cobalt, lithium, silicon metal, and REEs (such as dysprosium and praseodymium) are some of the key CRMs in all three sectors.

The transport and energy sectors share 16 out of 33 CRMs in the selected technologies. The CRMs used by transport and energy sectors are mostly those associated with batteries, which are used for energy storage as well as energy source for EVs. Besides lithium, fluorspar components are crucial for the development of Li-ion batteries. Furthermore, the transport and energy sectors share the use of REEs, such as neodymium. This element is required for the manufacturing of permanent magnets, which are used for wind turbines in the energy sector and traction motors for transport applications.

The energy and electronics and telecommunication sectors share 14 out of 33 CRMs. This means that CRM requirements of energy, electronics and telecommunication technologies could together generate a significant pressure on the CRM demand for almost half of the CRM required for the respective technologies. There are 3 CRMs that are allocated only to energy, and electronics and telecommunication sectors. Gallium, germanium, and indium present important applications for photonics, 5G/6G, quantum computing, as well as for PV technologies.



The future demand of CRMs in each technology also depends on the links between the key sectors (see figure 17(b)). This means that each sector could drive indirectly the future CRM demand from another sector. For instance, it is well-known that the application of electronics and telecommunication technologies can contribute to improve energy systems. Automatization with digital technologies can support the manufacturing of energy equipment, making these devices technically and commercially feasible. Furthermore, quantum computing applications can be used to enhance the scenario development of energy systems, in which it can be improved the performance intermittent energy sources, such as solar and wind.

Considering a sustainable transition for the transport sector, any advancement in transport technology will be supplemented by renewable energies (IEA, 2020b). This implies that transport sector contributes indirectly to the demand for new energy technologies and, consequently, for CRM demand. The increasing demand of electricity should be satisfied through renewable sources.

Electronics and telecommunication also play a key role in the future transport sector. For example, electrical components are crucial for future transport systems, as those components are used to enhance the energy efficiency and driving security. Likewise, autonomous transport will require a high level of connectivity between transport equipment and its surroundings, which implies further advancement on 5G/6G applications (HUAWEI, 2021). Thus, future transport systems will drive the CRM demand from electronics and telecommunication applications as well.

In general, the electronics and telecommunication sectors are considered an enabler for the energy and circular transitions. However, electronics and telecommunication applications also push the demand of energy from a production and use side. To produce electronic devices, energy is required, which should be produced from sustainable energy technologies (Castellani et al., 2015). Moreover, operating network systems requires reliable sources of energy that are expected to be supported by the current and emerging energy technologies. Considering the CRM demand by 2040, the nexus between the key sectors could generate an increasing pressure on CRM demand thereby further pushing criticality of these materials.

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 730227







Figure 17: CRM demand for the 11 selected technologies across key sectors, and (b) links between the sectors for future CRM demand





## 5.2. Further considerations for future CRM demand

Within the reviewed technologies, the scenarios of CRM demand consider a sustainable pathway to achieve climate change targets. Several studies suggest the need for energy and circular transitions, as well as the CRM demand for technologies that enables such transitions (Valero et al., 2018; Zanoletti et al., 2021). Nevertheless, there are still several implications from a system viewpoint that should be considered for providing a broader insight on the potential demand for CRMs. Here, we reflect on six main aspects that have direct and indirect implications for the CRM demand by 2040.

## 5.2.1. Current CRM demand and scale from other sectors

Future CRM demand will not only depend on new technologies used by the selected sectors, but also depend on the current demand from the rest of the economy (de Koning et al., 2018). For example, lithium is used in multiples sectors, such as ceramic glass, and polymer productions (European Commission, 2020a). It is expected that the lithium demand share for these sectors will be between 10-20% of the total lithium demand in 2070 (IEA, 2020a)<sup>4</sup>.

Although the share of lithium on battery applications will present the highest value (in volume) for 2070, its application in other sectors might still have major impacts on the future demand. A comprehensive assessment of CRM demand should consider the overall change in CRM demand to be able to estimate the future availability and accessibility. This also means that the CRM demand scenarios for the selected technologies can be seen as an extra factor that affects future CRM demand.

For cobalt, the current use is very limited in EVs application. In 2020, over half of cobalt is used for batteries, mostly in LCO batteries for portable electronic equipment (Cobalt Institute, 2021). However, the predicted growth in EVs will change this in the coming years, and likely dominate demand.

Another example is the use of tantalum. Currently, more than 40% of tantalum use is for the production of capacitors, which are used in high-value electronics, along with superalloys. These types of applications for CRMs should be considered to determine the overall impact on future CRM demand. The scale of CRM requirements is also an important aspect to consider. There are CRMs crucial for certain technologies that might not have major influence on total demand when comparing with the demand from other sectors. For instance, the amount of CRMs required by 5G/6G technology (see table 1, Annex) will be much less than the CRM demand for in the steel industry, which requires CRMs to produce steel alloys, such as niobium (Tuttle, 2018).

## **5.2.2. CRM demand from applications connected to the selected sectors**

With the development of new technologies (especially those related to the energy transition), there are multiple applications that might impact the CRM from other sectors. For example, fire safety is a key industry for transport and energy sectors because of specific fire risks in high-current cables exposed to UV and weathering, in inverters and battery charging stations (Aram et al., 2021; Carrol, 2020; IFP, 2016). The relevance of fire safety industry will increase of CRM demand, such as phosphorus<sup>1</sup> (ESPP, 2020).

## 5.2.3. CRM demand from CRM production and infrastructure

The future demand of CRMs will also depend on the materials requirements on the CRM production and infrastructure. For example, the product of cobalt (as well as other metals) requires the use of phosphorus<sup>1</sup>, as P4 is used in the separation of cobalt from nickel (ESPP, 2020). Thus, the production of certain CRMs could drive the demand for other CRMs directly or indirectly.

Increasing the CRM demand would imply the investment in building factories and infrastructure that are required to satisfy the expected demand (Sprecher & Kleijn, 2021). This might turn into a potential increase of raw material demand to build the infrastructure. For example, hydrogen distribution for energy sector would require converting a gas pipeline to a hydrogen pipeline, which implies special application of steels containing niobium in new pipelines. Among raw materials for infrastructure, there could be potential hidden CRM demand that has not been considered to-date (to the best of our knowledge).

#### 5.2.4. Circularity potential

Material circularity might have major implications on future demand of CRMs. Circular strategies include



interventions that are related to waste management, closing supply chains, product lifetime extension, and resource efficiency (Aguilar-Hernandez et al., 2018; Bocken et al., 2017; Peck et al., 2015).

Within the CRM context, circular strategies are interesting as an alternative to reduce future CRM demand. This has brought an increasing advancement in recycling processes to recover CRMs at the end-of-life stage, for example, from e-waste (Auerbach et al., 2019; Deetman et al., 2018; Deetman et al., 2018). For instance, novel technologies for the recovery of gallium and REEs from e-waste have been developed to reduce the amount of primary CRM extraction (de Oliveira et al., 2021).

Thus, circular strategies might contribute to reduce the CRM primary demand in certain sectors (European Commission, 2018). However, the implications of circular strategies in CRM demand would depend on how fast recycling and recovery technologies will be commercially available in the upcoming decades and how fast relevant waste streams become available to feed recycling processes, especially for these new technologies.

#### 5.2.5. Future innovations and emerging CRMs

Technological development and innovations might have an important contribution to the future CRM demand. In this working paper were reviewed only a few technologies from several potential innovations in the next 2 decades. For example, battery technologies are developing constantly, and, with multiple battery formulations, it is difficult to establish whether there is a specific technology that will dominate the market in the next 10-20 years. Although it is ideal to have a broader perspective on which will be the future innovations that will support the energy and circularity transition, this working paper only included those technologies that were recurrent on the literature, and on which a connection between the selected sectors and CRM requirements were made.

Furthermore, the reviewed CRMs in this working paper include those materials that are considered critical from the 2020 EU's list (European Commission, 2021b). This means that potential emerging CRMs are not considered, however, they might be relevant for future CRM demand. For instance, copper is not currently on the EU's CRM list, however, this element might become more critical in the future due to their economic relevance and potential supply chain risks (de Koning et al., 2018; Dong et al., 2019). The selection of possible CRM candidates is an ongoing discussion, in which the SCRREEN2 network offers valuable information to explore which materials might become part of the future CRM list (see https://scrreen.eu/).

There are other CRMs from the current EU list that were not included in this working paper. For instance, coking coal is a current CRM that is key for steel production. Furthermore, other CRMs might appear from a forwardlooking CRM demand evaluation. This is the case of zooming in within the select sectors. For example, when considering lightweighing for the transportation sector, steel in vehicles is currently being replaced by magnesium and aluminium-magnesium alloys to reduce fuel consumption and emissions. Thus, magnesium will play a major role in lightweighing. Likewise, the demand of beryllium is equally important in this application as each magnesium alloy requires 5-15 ppm of beryllium to be used and produced safely.

Considering the potential missing CRMs in this working paper, we acknowledge that the reviewed CRMs represent only some of the key CRMs for each technology based on the literature search. Thus, there are more CRMs from other sectors and technologies that might drive the future CRM demand.

#### 5.2.6. Supply and demand interactions

Exploring future CRM demand should be aligned with the supply side, and whether the future supply will be enough to satisfy the potential demand. From the reviewed literature, there are several publications that address the CRM reservoirs and potential supply for CRMs (see, for example, IEA, 2019; Michaux, 2021; World Bank, 2021). However, this working paper focuses on CRMs the demand side exclusively.

The reason to exclude the supply perspective is because this working paper is presented as one piece of a working paper series from the SCRREEN2 project, in which the supply perspective and supply/demand interaction will be addressed in the upcoming works from SCRREEN2 working paper series.

#### 5.3. Concluding remarks

This working paper brought an overview of the CRM demand for 11 technologies that are expected to contribute to the energy and circular transitions in transportation, energy, electronics, and telecommunication sectors. The working paper considered the CRMs requirements for technologies in transport,







energy, and electronics and telecommunication sectors in the upcoming two decades (i.e., up to 2040). The demand for the selected technologies will drive an increase in demand for 33 CRMs, which are used for the production and development of each technology.

From the CRM future demand and potential implications, it is important to consider the dynamic aspect of the CRMs. The changes in technology (as well as raw material demand) are not static, which implies that some raw materials might become critical in the future with the development of new technologies. The dynamic aspect of CRM is crucial to understand the future CRM demand that should be considered in the ongoing CRM assessments to anticipate potential changes in CRMs.

Furthermore, the dynamic of the CRM demand for new technologies will have an impact the raw material markets. It is expected that some the reviewed technologies will change the respective CRM markets. For instance, Li-ion battery technologies have led to market changes for lithium, cobalt and nickel, which will continue to change the markets. Likewise, e-mobility will have an impact on the copper market, in which market changes might be marginal in comparison with other copper applications. Thus, the evolution of CRM demand can be linked to the future market changes for certain raw materials.

This working paper also examined the links between the 3 selected sectors and future CRM demand, and the main implications for CRM demand by 2040. Among further implications, this working paper highlighted the importance of future CRM demand from other sectors and technologies, CRM demand from production and building infrastructure, circularity potential, future innovations, and supply/demand interactions. This work only explores the demand side as it is part of a working paper series from SCRREEN2 project, in which it will be available relevant information for the CRM supply perspective and opportunities to develop the future CRM assessment (for updates on the SCRREEN2 working paper series, see: https://scrreen.eu/).

#### Acknowledgements

The authors would like to thank the following experts from the SCCREEN2 network who brought their valuable feedback on this working paper: Carlos Frias, Chris Thornton (ESPP), Elisabeth Prieto Strobl (CRM Alliance), Fabrizio Corti, Genevieve Metson (LiU), Gonzalo Mayoral Fernández, Gustavo Macedo (CBMM), Henryk Karaś, Lekshmi Nair (IRSG), Manuel Regueiro, Martin Tauber (IMA), Matti Kinnunen (GTK), Nadia Vinck (EMEAA), Navaraj Perumalsamy, Nourredine Menad, Patrick Friedrichs (GTK), Rebecca Lentini (BeST), Simon Michaux (GTK), Tom Fairlie (Cobalt Institute), and Vjaceslavs Lapkovskis (Riga Technical University).

#### Footnotes

- Phosphorus is used in the EU CRM List to mean P4 (white phosphorus) and derivatives, and Phosphate Rock is used to mean the element phosphorus in any form (ESPP, 2020). In this working paper, Phosphorus refers to P4 and derivatives.
- Values were retrieved from ambitious scenarios 2 in Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021). These scenarios consider ambitious climate policy targets, following the SSP1 sustainability scenario by the IPCC (Marscheider-Weidemann et al., 2021). Methodologically, in this working paper, the 2040 values were divided by the CRM requirement of the respective technology in 2018 to determine how much CRM demand will be required in comparison with the most recent requirements (i.e., 2018). This approach is equivalent to the estimation reported by Bobba et al. (2020), but with the difference that this report shows values for the global demand instead of only the demand for the EU.
- Values were retrieved from Scenario F in Michaux (2021). This scenario considers the extra power generation capacity required to phase out fossil fuels completely worldwide.
- Values were retrieved from Sustainable Development scenarios in IEA (2020a). These values were retrieved from the figures, thus, the values represent an approximation of the reported data in in IEA (2020a).
- 5. Elements were allocated to the respective areas only for graphical purposes.
- Values were retrieved from both Stated Policies and Sustainable Development scenarios in IEA (2020a).





### 6. Annex

Material	Global production for 2018, in tonnes*	Sector	Technology	Total requirement s for 2018, in tonnes	Future demand for 2040, in tonnes	Future demand factor (i.e., future demand/total requirements)	Future demand /Global producti on for 2018 (%)	Reference			
		Transport	Li-ion battery	12750	311000	x24	222%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Cabalt	140000		Li-ion battery		7900000**	x620	5642%	Michaux (2021)			
Cobalt	140000	_	Fuel cells	1	63	x63	0.04%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
		Energy	Hydrogen	01	370	X3700	0.3%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
		-	Solar PV	5	26	x5	0.006%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Calling	410000	Energy		5	50***	x10	0.01%	IEA (2020a)			
Gallium	410000	50 T	Photonics	1	2	x2	0.0005%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
		E&I	5G/6G	77	122	x2	0.03%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
		_		17	92	x5	13%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
	720	Energy	Solar PV	17	170***	x10	24%	IEA (2020a)			
Indium		E&T	Photonics	5	16	x3	2%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
			5G/6G	5	16	x3	2%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Carabita	1600000****	000**** Transport	ansport Li-ion battery	21000	1019000	x47	64%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Graphite				21900	62200000**	x2840	388%	Michaux (2021)			
	85000	Transport	<b>-</b> .	<b>-</b> .	<b>-</b> .	11 in britten.	7460	377300**	x51	443%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)
Link is see			Li-ion battery	7460	6100000**	x818	7176%	Michaux (2021)			
Lithium		Energy	Li-ion battery	476	24083	x51	28%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
		E&T	5G/6G	8	15	x2	0.02%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Platinum	160000	Energy	Hydrogen	1E-02	40	x4000	0.02%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
		Transport	Traction	34630	834050	X24	491%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
DEE	170000	170000 Energy	Wind	2820	15890	X6	9%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
REES			Solar PV	3168	17740	x5	10%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
					Hydrogen	8E-01	3170	x3000	2%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)	
Scandium	-	Energy	Hydrogen	1E-02	24	x2400	-	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Tantalum	1800	E&T	5G/6G	194	356	x2	20%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			
Titanium	11500	Energy	Hydrogen	3.5	13600	x3800	118%	Marscheider-Weidemann et al. (2021)			

#### Table 1. Global production (in tonnes), total requirements per technology (in tonnes), future demand (in tonnes), and future demand factors

\*Global production includes all the material production in 2018. Data retrieved from USGS (2022)

\*\*Estimated demand for 2050

\*\*\*Values retrieved and rounded from the report's figures

\*\*\*\* Value retrieved from Zhou and Damm (2020)





7.

- Aguilar-Hernandez, G. A., Sigüenza-Sanchez, C. P., Donati, F., Rodrigues, J. F. D., & Tukker, A. (2018). Assessing circularity interventions : a review of EEIOA-based studies. *Journal of Economic Structures*, *7*(14), 1–24. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40008-018-0113-3
- Ait Abderrahim, A. Monnet, A. (2018). Report on major trends affecting future demand for critical raw materials. SCRREEN project D.2.2.
- Amiri, I. S., Azzuhri, S. R. Bin, Jalil, M. A., Hairi, H. M., Ali, J., Bunruangses, M., & Yupapin, P. (2018). Introduction to photonics: Principles and the most recent applications of microstructures. *Micromachines*, 9(9). https://doi.org/10.3390/mi9090452
- Appas, F., Baboux, F., Amanti, M. I., Lemaítre, A., Boitier, F., Diamanti, E., & Ducci, S. (2021). Flexible entanglement-distribution network with an AlGaAs chip for secure communications. *Quantum Information*, 7(1). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41534-021-00454-7
- Aram, M., Zhang, X., Qi, D., & Ko, Y. (2021). A state-of-theart review of fire safety of photovoltaic systems in buildings. *JOURNAL OF CLEANER PRODUCTION*, 308. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2 021.127239
- Auerbach, R., Bokelmann, K., Stauber, R., Gutfleisch, O., Schnell, S., & Ratering, S. (2019). Critical raw materials – Advanced recycling technologies and processes: Recycling of rare earth metals out of end of life magnets by bioleaching with various bacteria as an example of an intelligent recycling strategy. *Minerals Engineering*, 134(December 2018), 104– 117. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mineng.2018.12.022
- Blanco, C. F., Cucurachi, S., Peijnenburg, W. J. G. M., Beames, A., & Vijver, M. G. (2020). Are Technological Developments Improving the Environmental Sustainability of Photovoltaic Electricity? *Energy Technology*, 1901064. https://doi.org/10.1002/ente.201901064
- Bobba, S., Carrara, S., Huisman, J., Mathieux, F., & Pavel, C.
  (2020). Critical Raw Materials for Strategic Technologies and Sectors in the EU a Foresight Study. In *JRC*. https://doi.org/10.2873/58081

- Bocken, N. M. P., Olivetti, E. A., Cullen, J. M., Potting, J., & Lifset, R. (2017). Taking the Circularity to the Next Level: A Special Issue on the Circular Economy. *Journal of Industrial Ecology*, 00(0), 1–7. https://doi.org/10.1111/jiec.12606
- Carrol, D. (2020). Australian rooftop PV safety standards under fire in new report. PV Magazine. https://www.pvmagazine.com/2020/11/20/australian-rooftop-pvsafety-standards-under-fire-in-new-report/
- Castellani, V., Sala, S., & Mirabella, N. (2015). Beyond the Throwaway Society: A Life Cycle-Based Assessment of the Environmental Benefit of Reuse. *INTEGRATED ENVIRONMENTAL* ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT, 11(3), 373–382. https://doi.org/10.1002/ieam.1614
- Cobalt Institute. (2021). 'State of the Cobalt market' report.
- de Koning, A., Kleijn, R., Huppes, G., Sprecher, B., van Engelen, G., & Tukker, A. (2018). Metal supply constraints for a low-carbon economy? *Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 129*(August 2017), 202–208. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.resconrec.2017.10.040
- de Oliveira, R. P., Benvenuti, J., & Espinosa, D. C. R. (2021). A review of the current progress in recycling technologies for gallium and rare earth elements from light-emitting diodes. *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews*, *145*(March), 111090. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rser.2021.111090
- Deetman, S, van Oers, L., van der Voet, E., & Tukker, A. (2016). Deriving European Tantalum Flows Using Trade and Production Statistics. *Journal of Industrial Ecology, in press*(0), 1–14. https://doi.org/DOI: 10.1111/jiec.12533
- Deetman, Sebastiaan, Pauliuk, S., Van Vuuren, D. P., Van Der Voet, E., & Tukker, A. (2018). Scenarios for Demand Growth of Metals in Electricity Generation Technologies, Cars, and Electronic Appliances. *Environmental Science and Technology*, *52*(8), 4950–4959.

https://doi.org/10.1021/acs.est.7b05549

- Deetman, Sebastiaan, van Oers, L., van der Voet, E., & Tukker, A. (2018). Deriving European Tantalum
- This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 730227







Flows Using Trade and Production Statistics. *Journal* of Industrial Ecology, 22(1), 166–179. https://doi.org/10.1111/jiec.12533

- DOE. (2011). Critical materials strategy for clean energy technologies. In *Critical Materials Strategy for Clean Energy Technologies*.
- Dong, D., Tukker, A., & Van der Voet, E. (2019). Modeling copper demand in China up to 2050: A business-asusual scenario based on dynamic stock and flow analysis. *Journal of Industrial Ecology*, 23(6), 1363– 1380. https://doi.org/10.1111/jiec.12926
- Ecclestone, C. (2019). Erbium: The Secret Sauce in 5G Networks? (Issue 44). https://www.hallgartenco.com/pdf/RareEarths/Erb iumReview\_Sept2019.pdf
- Elshkaki, A. (2020). Long-term analysis of critical materials in future vehicles electrification in China and their national and global implications. *Energy*, 202, 117697. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.energy.2020.117697
- EMF. (2017). Achieving Growth Within. Technical Report.
- ESPP. (2020). Summary of joint European Commission ESPP webinar on P4 (phosphorus) Critical Raw Material, 9th July 2020. https://phosphorusplatform.eu/images/scope/Sco peNewsletter136.pdf
- European Commission. (2014). Report on critical raw materials for the EU Critical raw materials profiles.
- European Commission. (2017). Digitalisation Research and Innovation - Transforming European industry and services. https://doi.org/10.2777/858080
- European Commission. (2018). *Report on Critical Raw Materials and the Circular Economy, 2018.* https://doi.org/10.2873/331561
- European Commission. (2020a). Study on the Eu's list of Critical Raw Materials - Critical Raw Materials Factsheets. In *Critical Raw Materials Factsheets*. https://doi.org/10.2873/92480
- European Commission. (2020b). Study on the EU's list of Critical Raw Materials (2020) Final Report. https://doi.org/10.2873/904613

- European Commission. (2021a). An European Green Deal. https://ec.europa.eu/info/strategy/priorities-2019-2024/european-green-deal\_en
- European Commission. (2021b). Critical raw materials. https://ec.europa.eu/growth/sectors/rawmaterials/specific-interest/critical\_en
- European Commission. (2021c). *Transport emissions*. https://ec.europa.eu/clima/policies/transport\_en
- Eynard, U., Georgitzikis, K., Wittmer, D., Latunussa, C. EL, Torres de Matos, C., Mancini, L., Unguru, M., Blagoeva, D., Bobba, S., Pavel, C., Carrara, S., Mathieux, F., Pennington, D., & Blengini, G. A. (2020). European Commission, Study on the EU's list of Critical Raw Materials (2020), Factsheets on Noncritical Raw Materials. doi: 10.2873/587825
- Flik, G. (2021). Material Criticality for Future Telecommunication Technologies Company [Leiden University & Delft University of Technology]. http://resolver.tudelft.nl/uuid:b3391f04-d3e4-4e96-b4eb-5465c84fb759
- Garrington, D. (2020). Renewable energy defies Covid-19 to hit record growth in 2020. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2020/ nov/10/renewable-energy-covid-19-recordgrowth-2020
- Giustino, F., Lee, J. H., Trier, F., Bibes, M., Winter, S. M., Valentí, R., Son, Y., Taillefer, L., Heil, C., Figueroa, A. I., Plaçais, B., Wu, Q., Yazyev, O. V, Bakkers, E. P. A. M., Nygård, J., Forn-Díaz, P., De Franceschi, S., WMcIver, J. L., Torres, L., ... Roche, S. (2020). The 2021 quantum materials roadmap Journal of Physics : Materials OPEN ACCESS The 2021 quantum materials roadmap. J. Phys. Mater., 3, 042006. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1088/2515-7639/abb74e
- Grilli, M. L., Bellezze, T., Gamsjäger, E., Rinaldi, A., Novak, P., Balos, S., Piticescu, R. R., & Ruello, M. L. (2017). Solutions for critical raw materials under extreme conditions: A review. *Materials*, 10(3), 1–23. https://doi.org/10.3390/ma10030285
- Hache, E., Seck, G. S., Simoen, M., Bonnet, C., & Carcanague, S. (2019). Critical raw materials and transportation sector electrification: A detailed bottom-up analysis in world transport. *Applied*





*Energy,* 240(February), 6–25. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apenergy.2019.02.057

- HUAWEI. (2021). Green 5G: Building A Sustainable World. https://www.huawei.com/en/public-policy/green-5g-building-a-sustainable-world
- IEA. (2019). Global EV Outlook 2019. https://www.iea.org/reports/global-ev-outlook-2019
- IEA. (2020a). Energy Technology Perspectives 2020. In *IEA*. https://doi.org/10.1787/ab43a9a5-en
- IEA. (2020b). Tracking Transport 2020. https://www.iea.org/reports/tracking-transport-2020
- IEA. (2021a). Renewables 2020. Analysis and forecast to 2025.
- IEA. (2021b). The Role of Critical Minerals in Clean Energy Transitions. In IEA. https://www.iea.org/reports/the-role-of-criticalminerals-in-clean-energy-transitions
- IEEE. (2021). Semiconductor Materials. https://irds.ieee.org/topics/semiconductormaterials
- IFP. (2016). Fire safety in wind power stations an unexplored area. https://ifpmag.mdmpublishing.com/fire-safety-inwind-power-stations-an-unexplored-area/
- IRENA. (2019a). Future of Solar Photovoltaic: Deployment, investment, technology, grid integration and socioeconomic aspects (A Global Energy Transformation: paper). https://irena.org/-/media/Files/IRENA/Agency/Publication/2019/Nov /IRENA\_Future\_of\_Solar\_PV\_2019.pdf
- IRENA. (2019b). Hydrogen: A renewable energy perspective.
- IRENA. (2020). Green Hydrogen: A guide to policy making. https://www.irena.org/-/media/Files/IRENA/Agency/Publication/2020/Nov /IRENA\_Green\_hydrogen\_policy\_2020.pdf
- IRP. (2020). Resource Efficiency and Climate Change: Material Efficiency Strategies for a Low-Carbon

*Future. A report of the International Resource Panel.* https://www.resourcepanel.org/reports/resourceefficiency-and-climate-change

- Jones, B., Elliott, R. J. R., & Nguyen-Tien, V. (2020). The EV revolution: The road ahead for critical raw materials demand. *Applied Energy*, *280*(October), 115072. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apenergy.2020.115072
- Juneja, S., Pratap, R., & Sharma, R. (2021). Semiconductor technologies for 5G implementation at millimeter wave frequencies – Design challenges and current state of work. *Engineering Science and Technology, an International Journal, 24*(1), 205–217. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jestch.2020.06.012
- Kiemel, S., Smolinka, T., Lehner, F., Full, J., Sauer, A., & Miehe, R. (2021). Critical materials for water electrolysers at the example of the energy transition in Germany. *International Journal of Energy Research*, 45(7), 9914–9935. https://doi.org/10.1002/er.6487
- Langkau, S., & Tercero Espinoza, L. A. (2018). Technological change and metal demand over time: What can we learn from the past? *Sustainable Materials and Technologies*, *16*, 54–59. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.susmat.2018.02.001
- Marchese, M., Moheddine, A., & Patrone, F. (2019). IoT and UAV integration in 5G hybrid terrestrial-satellite networks. *Sensors (Switzerland)*, *19*(17). https://doi.org/10.3390/s19173704
- Marscheider-Weidemann, F., Langkau, S., Baur, S.-J., Billaud, M., Deubzer, O., Eberling, E., Erdmann, L., Haendel, M., Krail, M., Loibl, A., Maisel, F., Marwede, M., Neef, C., Neuwirth, M., Rostek, L., Rückschloss, J., Shirinzadeh, S., Stijepic, D., & Tercero Espinoza, L. Tippner, M. (2021). Rohstoffe für Zukunftstechnologien 2021. – DERA Rohstoffinformationen 50: 366 S.
- Miao, Y., Hynan, P., Von Jouanne, A., & Yokochi, A. (2019). Current li-ion battery technologies in electric vehicles and opportunities for advancements. *Energies*, *12*(6), 1–20. https://doi.org/10.3390/en12061074
- Michaux, S. P. (2021). Assessment of the Extra Capacity Required of Alternative Energy Electrical Power Systems to Completely Replace Fossil Fuels.
- This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 730227



https://doi.org/10.13140/RG.2.2.34895.00160

Monnet, A., & Ait Abderrahim, A. (2018). Report on major trends affecting future demand for critical raw materials. SCRREEN - D2.2. In SCRREEN project. http://www.scrreen.eu/wpcontent/uploads/2018/07/D2.2-Report-on-majortrends-affecting-future-demand-for-critical-rawmaterials.pdf

- Mordor Intelligence. (2021). Permanent Magnet Motor Market - Growth, Trends, COVID-19 Impact, and Forecast (2021 - 2026). https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industryreports/permanent-magnet-motor-market
- Moss, R., Tzimas, E., Willis, P., Arendorf, J., Tercero Espinoza, L., Thomson, P., Chapman, A., Morley, N., Sims, E., Bryson, R., Pearson, J., Marscheider-Wiedemann, F., Soulier, M., Lüllmann, A., Sartorius, C., & Ostertag, K. (2013). Critical Metals in the Path towards the Decarbonisation of the EU Energy Sector: Assessing Rare Metals as Supply-Chain Bottlenecks in Low-Carbon Energy Technologies. In JRC. https://doi.org/10.2790/46338
- NRC. (2008). Minerals, Critical Minerals, and the U.S. Economy. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.17226/12034.
- Pavel, C. C., Thiel, C., Degreif, S., Blagoeva, D., Buchert, M., Schüler, D., & Tzimas, E. (2017). Role of substitution in mitigating the supply pressure of rare earths in electric road transport applications. *Sustainable Materials and Technologies*, 12, 62–72. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.susmat.2017.01.003
- Peck, D., Kandachar, P., & Tempelman, E. (2015). Critical materials from a product design perspective. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matdes.2014.08.042
- Rabe, W., Kostka, G., & Smith Stegen, K. (2017). China's supply of critical raw materials: Risks for Europe's solar and wind industries? *Energy Policy*, 101, 692– 699. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.enpol.2016.09.019
- Shiva Kumar, S., & Himabindu, V. (2019). Hydrogen production by PEM water electrolysis – A review. *Materials Science for Energy Technologies*, 2(3), 442–454. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mset.2019.03.002

- Song, Y., Perez, C., Esteves, G., Lundh, J. S., Saltonstall, C.
  B., Beechem, T. E., Yang, J. I., Ferri, K., Brown, J. E., Tang, Z., Maria, J. P., Snyder, D. W., Olsson, R. H., Griffin, B. A., Trolier-Mckinstry, S. E., Foley, B. M., & Choi, S. (2021). Thermal Conductivity of Aluminum Scandium Nitride for 5G Mobile Applications and beyond. ACS Applied Materials and Interfaces, 13(16), 19031–19041. https://doi.org/10.1021/acsami.1c02912
- Sprecher, B., & Kleijn, R. (2021). Tackling material constraints on the exponential growth of the energy transition. *One Earth*, *4*(3), 335–338. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oneear.2021.02.020
- Tercero Espinoza, L. A. (2012). The role of emerging technologies in rapidly changing demand for mineral raw materials. POLINARES working paper n. 27. In POLINARES (Ed.), Identification of potential sources of competition, tension and conflict and potential technological solutions. Deli. https://www.isi.fraunhofer.de/en/competencecenter/nachhaltigkeitinfrastruktursysteme/projekte/polinares.html?WSE SSIONID=d8cd0938d1e79a1f2c28670db5fcec8f
- Tercero Espinoza, L. A., & Wittmer, D. (2015). On the influence of technological change and substitution on the demand for non-energy raw materials. In D. Wittmer, & H. Sievers (Eds.), Thematic Report V: Developments on the raw material markets (pp. 82– 109).
- Tsiropoulos, I., Tarvydas, D., & Lebedeva, N. (2018). *Li-ion* batteries for mobility and stationary storage applications - Scenarios for costs and market growth. https://doi.org/10.2760/8717
- Tuttle, R. (2018). *Alloy Steels*. https://doi.org/: 10.3390/met8020116
- Ubaldi, B., Le Fevre, E. M., Petrucci, E., Marchionni, P., Biancalana, C., Hiltunen, N., Intravaia, D. M., & Yang, C. (2019). State of the art in the use of emerging technologies in the public sector. In *OECD Working Papers on Public Governance* (Issue 31). https://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/governance/stateof-the-art-in-the-use-of-emerging-technologies-inthe-public-sector\_932780bc-en
- UN. (2021). Technology and Innovation Report 2021. https://unctad.org/system/files/official-
- This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 730227









#### document/tir2020\_en.pdf

- USGS. (2022). *Mineral Commodity Summaries*. https://www.usgs.gov/centers/national-mineralsinformation-center/mineral-commodity-summaries
- Valero, A., Valero, A., Calvo, G., & Ortego, A. (2018). Material bottlenecks in the future development of green technologies. *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews*, 93(May), 178–200. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rser.2018.05.041
- Widmer, J. D., Martin, R., & Kimiabeigi, M. (2015). Electric vehicle traction motors without rare earth magnets. *Sustainable Materials and Technologies*, *3*, 7–13. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.susmat.2015.02.001
- World Bank. (2021). The Growing Role of Minerals and Metals for a Low Carbon Future. https://documents.worldbank.org/en/publication/ documentsreports/documentdetail/207371500386458722/th e-growing-role-of-minerals-and-metals-for-a-lowcarbon-future
- Xu, C., Dai, Q., Gaines, L., Hu, M., Tukker, A., & Steubing, B. (2020). Future material demand for automotive lithium-based batteries. *Communications Materials*, 1(1). https://doi.org/10.1038/s43246-020-00095-x
- Yan, Z., & VanHeerden, D. P. (2021). BAW application of Aluminum and Scandium material in 5G RF filters. https://materion.com/about/new-atmaterion/baw-application-of-alsc-material-in-5g-rffilters
- Zanoletti, A., Cornelio, A., & Bontempi, E. (2021). A postpandemic sustainable scenario : What actions can be pursued to increase the raw materials availability ? *Environmental Research, 202*(June), 111681. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envres.2021.111681
- Zhou, Q., & Damm, S. (2020). Supply and Demand of Natural Graphite - DERA Rohstoffinformationen 43.